
 

PC Minutes 3-28-13 

 

 

City of Washington Terrace 1 
                                                2 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a Regular Planning Commission Meeting held on  4 
Thursday, March 28, 2013 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 
County of Weber, State of Utah          7 

_____________________________________________________________________ 8 
 9 

PLANNING COMMISSION AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  10 
Chairman Wallace Reynolds  11 
Commissioner Larry Weir 12 
Commissioner Dan Johnson 13 
Commissioner Scott Larsen- excused 14 
Commissioner Charles Allen 15 
Commissioner Scott Barker- excused 16 
Commissioner T.R. Morgan- excused 17 
Chief Building Inspector Jeff Monroe 18 
City Planning Attorney Bill Morris 19 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 20 
 21 

OTHERS PRESENT       22 
None 23 
 24 

1. ROLL CALL 7:00 p.m. 25 
 26 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 27 
 28 

3. WELCOME  29 
 30 

4. RECURRING BUSINESS 31 
 32 

        4.1      MOTION: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 33 
  34 

Motion by Commissioner Johnson 35 
Seconded by Commissioner Allen 36 

To approve the agenda 37 
Approved unanimously (4-0) 38 

 39 
        4.2      MOTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 28, 2013 40 
                   MEETING  41 
Commissioner Allen noted an error on line 100 that needed to be corrected. The change will be 42 
made before the final minutes are recorded. 43 

 Motion by Commissioner Allen 44 
 Seconded by Commissioner Johnson 45 

 to approve the minutes for February 28,2013 46 
 Approved unanimously (4-0) 47 



 

PC Minutes 3-28-13 

 

 

 48 
 49 

  50 
5.    NEW BUSINESS               51 

 52 
           5.1  DISCUSSION: ALTERNATE ENERGY ORDINANCE   53 
Morris led the Commission through the ordinance by each section, noting any comments. 54 
Commissioner Johnson asked about the 10 kilowatt stipulation on windmills and inquired if the 55 
city should set a minimum limit. Monroe stated that 10 kilowatt would be able to run a home, 56 
noting that anything greater than 10 kilowatt becomes a commercial windmill. Monroe stated 57 
that the lots for any windmills would need to be a minimum of 1 acre. Commissioner Allen noted 58 
that the 1 acre minimum would not allow any single homes. The Commission agreed to leave the 59 
minimum acreage as one. Commissioner Allen stated that the windmill blade height seems too 60 
low at 35 ft. The Commission agreed to leave the height at 35 ft. Commissioner Allen stated that 61 
he would like to expand the section concerning placement of the windmill. Morris took note of 62 
the suggested language which included that windmills may only be placed in rear yards that is 63 
not readily visible from a public right of way, accessory buildings or structures in a location that 64 
is not readily visible from a public right of way, a side yard in a location that is not readily 65 
visible from a public right of way, on the principle building not readily visible from a public 66 
right of way. The Commission agreed to make the adjustment.  67 
Commissioner Allen asked if the windmill located in the city will need to be taken down. Morris 68 
stated that it was possible with the language provided and it would be up to the city to enforce.  69 
Morris noted that solar power and windmills are to be governed separately. The Commission 70 
agreed to allow windmills as “Conditional”, rather than permitted use. 71 
Chairman Reynolds stated that it would be helpful to have meteorological data as to what wind 72 
rate is needed to generate a windmill, stating that the data may prove to show that windmills 73 
would not be beneficial to anyone depending on the wind consistency. He stated that windmills 74 
in the city would be very limited. Monroe stated that he will research the topic and report back to 75 
the Commission. 76 
Chairman Reynolds stated that he has noticed solar panels in the city but is unsure how 77 
functional they are. He stated his concern regarding the change in landscape.  Chairman 78 
Reynolds stated that there should be consideration for locations in the city for those who would 79 
want to put in a commercial windmill and the standards that would follow. He also noted that the 80 
city may need to address the issue of redistributing excess power. Monroe stated that the issue is 81 
covered through that building code and that the power company has their own standards that they 82 
require through the metering process. 83 
Commissioner Allen commented that windmills have the potential to kill birds and that the city 84 
should hold the owners responsible for caring or disposal for the wildlife that are injured or 85 
killed due to windmill blades. Monroe stated that he will check with animal control and do some 86 
research on that aspect.  87 
Commissioner Allen suggested that a list of definitions of what constitutes a windmill or solar 88 
panel should be included. Commissioner Johnson stated that definitions are not necessary 89 
because the code will define them. Morris stated that solar panels and heat pumps will be 90 
classified as permitted, however boilers will be prohibited. 91 

 92 
 93 
 94 



 

PC Minutes 3-28-13 

 

 

           5.2  DISCUSSION: RESULTS OF GENERAL PLAN SURVEY AND FUTURE 95 
                   AGENDA CONSIDERATIONS 96 
Monroe stated that he received 3 surveys back from the last meeting and supplied the 97 
Commission with the results. Monroe stated that there are 7 elements incorporated into the 98 
general plan. He is proposing that over the next few months, an element could be discussed at 99 
each meeting and the Commission will work together to establish how each element would affect 100 
the community and the general plan. He stated that he would like to see the Commission put their 101 
efforts into the direction of the general plan. He stated that he feels that the Commission has the 102 
vision and input needed to review and work on the general plan. Commissioner Allen suggested 103 
sending out a survey to the community. Monroe stated that community surveys will be part of 104 
the process at a later time after the Commission has laid down a footprint. Chairman Reynolds 105 
stated that he has provided an after action report to City Manager Tom Hanson concerning public 106 
transportation. Monroe stated that transportation issues are being looked at from various agencies 107 
and the city is not always in the discussions.  108 

 109 
 110 
     6.  UPDATE COMMISSION ON CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND  111 
          ZONING ISSUES 112 
Monroe stated that there are more developers looking at property in the city and has received 113 
several calls with questions. 114 
Monroe stated that the Council may be changing their meeting times to 6:00 p.m. and asked the 115 
Commission if they would also like to move their meeting times to 6:00 p.m. The 116 
Commissioners agreed that the 6:00 p.m. meeting time would be fine. Rodriguez will send an 117 
email to those Commissioners who were not present to let them know of the possible change and 118 
if they had any feedback. If there are no concerns, Rodriguez will send out the meeting change 119 
notice next week. 120 

 121 
7.  UPCOMING EVENTS    122 
   April 2nd: City Council Work Session 6:00 p.m. 123 
   April 2nd: City Council Meeting 7:00 p.m. 124 
   April 16th: City Council Meeting 7:00 p.m. 125 
   April 25th: Planning Commission Meeting 7:00 p.m. 126 
 127 

 8.  MOTION: ADJOURN THE MEETING   128 
  129 

 Motion by Commissioner Allen 130 
 Seconded by Commissioner Johnson. 131 

 to adjourn the meeting 132 
 Approved unanimously (4-0) 133 

 Time: 7:52 p.m. 134 
  135 

_______________________________      ___________________________ 136 
Date Approved                                              City Recorder 137 


